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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and audifor's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report,
and a directors' report and strategic report under company law.

The academy trust operates 2 academies in Worthing; Worthing High School for pupils aged 11 to 16, years 7 fo 11
and Clapham and Patching C of E Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11, years R to 6. Worthing High School has
a published admission number (PAN} of 1,050 and a roll of 1062 as at 31 August 2022, Clapham and Patching C of
E Primary School has a PAN of 56 with 37 children on roll as at 31 August 2022.

Worthing High is a mixed comprehensive school and one of six secondary schools in the town of Worthing.
Worthing High School converted to academy status in December 2012, became a multi academy trust in May 2018
and has a non-selective paolicy.

Set in the South Downs, Clapham and Patching C of E Primary school is an inclusive school with high
expectations, with a PAN of just 56. As a Church of England School they provide an education that focuses on
Christian values.

The Trust changed its name to South Downs Education Trust on the 6 February 2018. South Downs Education
Trust welcomed Clapham and Patching Church of England Primary School into the trust on 1 November 2020.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and arficles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The trustees of South Downs Education Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company [aw. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribuie to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
member.

Trustees' indemnities
There were no indemnities in place during the accounting period.
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TRUSTEES® REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees
The membership of the Trustees and the Board is determined by the Memorandum and Articles of Assaciation of
the company.

The membership of the board may also include one person appointed by the Secretary of State, in the event that
the Secretary of State appoints a person for this purpose, and the Secretary of State shall have the right from time
to time by written nofice to the Office to remove any Member appointed by him and to appoint a replacement
Member to fill a vacancy whether resulting from such removal or otherwise. It also includes the Diocesan Corporate
Member.

The Members of the Trust must be a minimum of 3 and ideally 5 accordance with Clause 12.
An employee of the Academy Trust cannot be a Member of the Academy Trust (Clause 12a).

Subject to the Articles the Academy Trust shall have the following Trustees:
* No fewer than 5 Trustees appointed under Article 50 & 50A combined
¢ A minimum of 2 Parent Trustees in the event that no Local Governing Bodies are established

The Academy Trust may also have any co-opted Trustee appointed under Article 58.

Members may appoint by ordinary resolution a minimum of 3 Trustees. The Member will seek to recruit Trustees
that are able to bring the necessary skills to the Trust Board to enable the Trustees to carry out their duties
effectively. Members will identify new Trustees and request that they complete an application form — outlining their
skills and experience. This will then be reviewed by the Members prior to them confirming the appointment of the
new Trustas formally.

The Diocesan Corporate Member shall appoint at least 2 Directors in accordance with Article 50A.

Employees of the Academy Trust must not exceed one third of the total number of Trusiees.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees

South Downs Education Trust provides a comprehensive programme of training and support for all Local
Governors, Trustees and Members. South Downs Education Trust is also a member of The Key and NGA for
professional support and training. All Members and Trustees are subject to a DBS check.

The Headteacher, Trust & Board Chairmen, Link Governor and Company Secretary/Clerk to Governors provide a
comprehensive induction for alt new Governors, Members and Trustees as outlined in the Trust's Academy New
Governor Induction Checklist.

Organisational sfructure

The Trustees are constituted under the Memorandum and Articles of Association (Multi Denominational Articles)
which govern South Downs Education Trust. The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that high standards of
corporate governance are maintained.

For the Academic Year 2021/22, the Board of Trustees met five times and the Board of Members met once. There
were two committees in place: Finance, Audit & Compliance Commitiee and Staffing, Pay and Performance. The
Terms of Reference for these committees has been agreed by the Trustees and are published on the school
website,
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The CEQ is the Accounting Officer for the Multi Academy Trust. The CEQ is appointed by the Trustees to manage
the day to day operation of South Bowns Education Trust and Worthing High School. The Head of School at
Clapham and Paiching C of E Primary School manages the day to day operations at that site. In order to facilitate
effective operations the CEQ and the Operations Director have delegated authority within the terms approved by
the Trustees for operational matters including educational, finance and employment matters; the finance manager

has been appointed to the role of Chief Financial Officer.

The decision making structure is summarised in the Poficy for the Delegation of Financial Powers and Duties of the
Trustees and Governing Body — which is reviewed annually. The Scheme of Delegation was also reviewed in

2019/20 as part of an external governance review.

The membership of two commitiees was as follows:

Audit Commitiee

Staffing, Pay and Performance Committee

Mrs R Fleming-Nuity

{Chair of Trustees - resigned 20/10/21)

Mr A Sparsis

Mr R Cohen

{Chair of Commiltee and Vice Chair of Trustees
untit  20/10/21 then Chair of Trustees from
20/10/21)

Mr I Hughes {Trustee and Committee Chair)
Mr J Gilbert (Trustes)

Rev'd H Buque (Trustee)

Mr T Parkin (Trustee)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Staffing, Pay and Performance Committee meets every November to review the pay recommendaticns for all
staff (including staff holding the role of Trustee). This also includes the Senior Leadership Team (Headteacher,

Deputy Headteachers, Business Manager and Extended Leadership Team).

Targets are set in accordance with the school's Pay Policy and Performance Management Policy.

The Staffing, Pay and Performance Committee then formally proposes to the Trustees all staff increments for
approval by the end of November annually. Pay is back dated to the previous September in accordance with

Teachers Pay and Conditions.
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Trade union facility fime

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials
during the relevant period -

Full-time equivalent employee number -

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employess
0% 100
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill 5,673,220
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time -

Paid trade union aclivities

Time spent on paid trade union aclivities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours -

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

South Downs Education Trust is a Multi Academy Trust with two schools. It has no sponsoring partner. South
Downs Education Trust is 2 member of Confederation of School Trusts, The Key and NGA.

Objectives and activities

Obijects and aims
The Academy Trust's principal activities ("the Objects”) are outlined in the Articles of Association.

Al South Downs Education Trust we believe that we can offer all of the following:

A) To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing Academies which
shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which:

i. shall include Church of England Academies ("Church Academies” and each a "Church Academy")
designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the principles, practices and tenets
of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to arranging for religious
education and daily acts of worship, and

ii. may include other Academies whether with or without a desfgnated religious character;

but in relation to each of the Academies to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not designated
Church of England.

Where an Academy is designated as or recognised as a Church Academy, in relation to the ethos and religious
education provided at the Academy the Directors shall have regard to any advice and follow any directives issued
by the Diocesan Corporate Member.

B) To promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of West Sussex and the surrounding area the provision of facilities
for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such facilities by reason of their
youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic circumstances or for the public at
large in the interests of social welfare and with the object of improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants.
Such facilities may be situated on land provided by the Trustees only if this is permitted by the terms of the
Trustees' trust and subject to the written consent of the Trustees and such conditions as the Trustees, after taking
advice shall impose.
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Everyone at South Downs Education Trust has worked hard to create a close community of learners in which there
is a clear focus upon raising standards of student achievement. The Trust continues to gain an excellent reputation
for the achievements of our children and students whether academic, sporting or cultural. Worthing High School
and Clapham and Patching are greatly valued by the community they serve and are both a very popular choice for
prospective children, students and their parents. In September 2022 Worthing High School continued to be
oversubscribed and Clapham and Patching was fully subscribed. We believe that this objective is vital if children
and students are to achieve their full potential. As a Trust we have high standards for our children/students—
maximum effort and excellent levels of achievement are encouraged and expected. It is through such expectations
that our childrenfstudents are set high targets which they go on to achieve. A marked feature of our schools is the
happy, friendly, caring family ethos which enables our children and students to settle quickly.

Our scheols thrive on being a community in the true sense of the term and they seek to achieve a parinership
between Trustees, Governors, teachers, parents, children and students as well as with our wider pariners,

Children and students alsc gain from an outstanding programme of enrichment activities that are extensive, fulfilling
and diverse. The broad, balanced and relevant curriculum provided by each school serves to ensure that
opportunities are available to enable children and students to fully develop their interests and talenis.

Our school websites provides much more information on the achievements of our students both academic and
through enrichment experiences www.worthinghigh.net and www.claphamandpatching.co.uk

Objectives, strategies and activities
School Development Plan Priorities 2022-23

Quality of Education
Behaviour and attifudes
Personal Development
Leadership and management

LN =

1. Quality of Education

1.1 An outstanding curriculum, tailored to be inclusive broad and inspiring
1.2 Outstanding teaching and learning, where no lessons fail to meet the school’s minimum expectations

1.3 Outstanding SEND provision to ensure inclusivity is at the heart of teaching practices and curriculum design
1.4 Qutstanding literacy for all

1.5 Qutstanding HPA boys progress

2. Behaviour and Attitudes

2.1 Continuing trend of reduced internal and external sanctions
2.2 Low-level disruption to be reduced further

2.3 Culture of ‘kindness and consideration' embedded

2.4 Ouistanding attendance for all

3. Personal Development

3.1 Consistent and diverse student leadership embedded and involved in strategic planning of the school

3.2 All pupils, including DP students, benefit from varied and enriching experiences both inside and outside of the
classroom.

3.3 All pupils’ talents, interests and experiences are developed through the Tutor programme and the PSHE
curriculum offer

3.4 All pupils are prepared for future success in education, employment or training through an exemplary careers
service.




SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

TRUSTEES® REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4. | eadership and Management

4.1 Robust and consistent safeguarding

4.2 Ta embed structures and systems that supports the wellbeing of staff and students
4.3 Impactful and high quality CPD for all staff at all career stages

4.4 Development of distributed SEND leadership

4.5 QOutreach opportunities are used to develop systems and practices

School Development Plan Priorities 2021-22

1. Student Progress
- Literacy for all
- Higher Prior Attaining/Disadvantaged Pupils/Low prior attaining students
2. Send Provision
3. Personal Development
4. Behaviour and Standards for all
- Alternative approach to FTE
- Attendance
5. Curriculum Development
6. Leadership & Qufreach

1. Student Progress

1.1 Students are provided with a literacy programme that encourages promotion of reading for pleasure, at all
ages. Positive reading habits will support reading fluency

1.2 Inferventions to support students that have not reached KS2 benchmarks or are behind chronological reading
age expectation. These will be delivered through bespcke intervention in literacy and in inclusion, where
appropriate

1.3 Emphasis In all lessons on stretch and challenge for all students, particularly those deemed HPA and DP.
Bespoke intervention to support these two target groups

1.4 Support students, not deemed SEND, but with LPA through intervention to improve progress

2. Send Provision :
2.1 Students with ACE'’s, early childhood trauma and autism are supported by staff who implement relevant and
appropriate strategies of support.

2.2 Students with SEND and who are placed in the SSC are supported through a bespoke key stage 3 curriculum
to include interventions whereby all core, EBACC and PHSE subjects have adapted SoW and resources.

2.3 Reward process for EHCP and SEN K students to be individualised to offer precision support and ensure
ali students are aware of their individual targets.
2.4 Sludents within key stage 4 access and complete relevant qualifications to enable the next phase of

education, training or employment at an appropriate level post 16. This may include access
to alternative provision.

3. Personal Development

3.1 Students are provided a broad enrichment and work-related leaming offer and are inspired io continue their]
learning beyond the classroom as global citizens.

3.2 Students regularly contribute to school life and are encouraged to share their feedback to enhance its
development.

3.3 Programme 1o support mental health and well-being for students, staff and parent/carers.
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4. Behaviour and Standards for all

4.1 Students’ attitudes demonstrate “The Worthing Way - Core Values”, in all aspects of schoal life, taig rid in
their achievements which are regularly recognised.

4.2 Alternative provision engages students and has a positive impact on the behaviour of students in school
4.3 Reduction in the sanctions applied by the school (Covid-19 context)

4.4 Attendance 96% and above

4.5 Diminish the difference between DP and non-DP attendance.

4.6 Reduction to persistent absentees to 13% or below.

5. Curriculum Development

5.1 Monitor nw Green and Green+ pathways to ensure qliﬁcations and teaching is high quality

5.2 Develop literacy programme, through English curriculum, to support and stretch higher number of high
attaining students in Year 9

5.3 Support growth of new subjecis
5.4 Subject led CPD to support curriculum development

6. Leadership and Outreach

6.1 Continued support for Clapham & Patching- Head of school

6.2 Development of links with locality Trusts

8.3 Increase SLT Capacity with AHT and Associate posts

6.4 Development of National & International links — Covid permitting
6.5 Continue work with GLF teaching hub through NPQs delivery

Public benefit

The trustees confirm that they have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit
published by the Charity Commission section 17(5} of the Charity Act and the Charities (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008. Trustees consider that the Academy Trust's aims are demonstrably to benefit the public, as the
academy meets the educations needs of young people living in the local community. In setting our objectives and
planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public
benefit.

The Trustees have:

* provided a review in the Trustees' Annual Report of the significant activities undertaken by the charity to
carry out its charifable purposes for the public benefit
provided details of purposes and objectives
provided details of strategies adopted and activities undertaken to achieve those purposes and objectives
provided details of the achievements by reference to the purposes and objectives set
included a statement as to whether they have complied with their duty to have due regard to our public
benefit guidance when exercising any powers or duties to which the guidance is relevant
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Strategic report
Achievements and performance

The Trustees measure the academy’s success partly through a series of performance objectives which are owned
by either the Trustees or members of the senior and Extended Leadership Team and the targets and progress of
the School Development Plan.

Key performance indicators
Our key performance indicators for the last three reportable years were:

2018 2019 2022
Progress 8 Score 0.15 012 0.16
Attainment 8 Score 4574 48.54 52.4
% of students Grade 4 and above 58% 74% 78%
in English and Maths
% of students Grade 5 and above 39% 46% 57%
in English and Maths
% of students entered for EBacc 60% 67.5% 61%
% of students who achieved 26% 26% A7%
EBacc
% of students staying in| 92% 99.5% 95%
education or employment after|
Ks4

* 2020 and 2021 were not assessed and therefore have not been reported above.

-10-
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Achievements for the Year ended 31 August 2022

Admissions and Transition

¢ As at 31 August 2022 - 1062 students on roll at Worthing High School

= As at 31 August 2022 - 37 students on roll at Clapham and Paiching

= Taster Events In Summer 2022 for Year 5 students

* Saturday Open Event and morning tour events at Worthing High School provided for all potential
September 2022 starters

* Open morning event at Clapham and Patching in November 2021 provided for all potential September
2022 starters

» Summer School offered for all September 2022 Year 7 starters

« September 2022 oversubscribed with first preferences against PAN of 210

In year admissions during 2021/22 were as follows:
2021/22 In Year Admissions - Worthing High School

Year Group F | M |Grand Total
Year 7 5] 8 13
Year 8 11| 7 18
Year 9 3|4 7
Year 10 3|4 7
Year 11 1 2 3
Grand Total 23 | 25 48

2021/22 In Year Admissions - Clapham & Patching

Year Group F | M |Grand Total
Year R 0] 0 ¢]
Year 1 2 1 3
Year 2 0|0 0
Year 3 1 1 2
Year 4 0 0 0
Year 5 0 1 1
Year 6 1 0 1
Grand Total 41 3 7

In year leavers during 2021/22 were as follows:

2021/22 In Year Leavers - Worthing High School
Year Group F | M | Grand Total
Year 7 4 4 8
Year 8 9 9 18
Year 9 4 4 8
Year 10 3 7 10
Year 11 1 0 1
Grand Total 21 | 24 45

2021/22 In Year Leavers - Clapham & Patching

Year Group F | M | Grand Total
Year R 0 1 1
Year 1 0 0 G
Year 2 1 0 ¢
Year 3 0 0 0
Year 4 0 0 0
Year 5 0 0 G
Year 6 0 0 0
Grand Total 1 1 2

-11-
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Key Performance Indicators {Financial)

Total salary costs (including agency and excluding LGPS service costs) to restricted revenue income 83% (2021:
81%)

Teaching and educational support staff costs to restricted revenue income 72% (2021: 69%).

Support staff costs to restricted revenue income 18% {2021: 16%)

Total salary costs {including agency and excluding LGFS service costs) as % of total restricted revenue expenditure
78% (2021: 80%)

Pupil teacher / management ratio 15:1 {(2021: 15:1)

Pupil admin/ education support staff ratio 14:1 (2021: 16:1)

Going concem

The Board of Trustees is aware that the academy trust has limited retained earnings to continue in operational
existence for the short term. The Trust has been working to ensure a minimum of one month's operating costs are
held in reserves to cover strategic growth initiatives and to create a contingency. This will be increasingly
challenging in the current financial climate. Some difficult decisions may need to be made in the future.

Despite this, given the expectations from the DFE financial modeling tables available for 2021 and beyond, the
maximising of lettings income, seeking of external grants and the continued careful budgeting by the Trust and after
making appropriate enquiries, the board of frustees has a reascnable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the
going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review

The in year revenue surplus figure of £78,397 (2021: £294,746) (consisting of restricted and unrestricted general
fund movements} was achieved with prudent budgeting — October 2020 census data provided AWPU funding for
1057 students for the financial year 2021/22.

Continued prudent budgeting has enabled the academy to retain a small unrestricted fund surplus of £243,540
(2021: £173,268) at the end of 2021/22.

A balanced budget has been set for 202223 in 2021/22.

The principal Financial Management Policies reviewed during the year were SSOPC Tendering Requirements,
Governors Expenses Policy, Scheme of Financial Delegation and Charging and Remission Policy.

The principal Financial Management Policies reviewed during the year were SSOPC Tendering Requirements, Pay
and Honoraria policy and Scheme of Financial Delegation.

The principal sources of restricted income are from the ESFA, based mainly on pupil numbers and key stage, and
WSCC for the Special Support Centre and High Needs SEN support for some individual students.

In addition, Worthing High School's unrestricted income is usually supplemented by a broad Lettings
Programme.Externally sourced grant income has continued to be chased. Unresiricted reserves were affected
adversely in 2020/21 due to the Coronavirus outbreak but the lettings programme has now resumed and is
generating unresiricted revenue,

The deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is recognised on the balance sheet in accordance
with FRS 102. Under FRS 102, an entity shall recognise a plan surplus as a defined beneflt plan asset only fo the
extent that it is able to recover the surplus. As this cannot be reliably quantified, the trustees have elected not to
recognise the defined benefit plan asset at the year value. The value of the liability at the 31 August 2021 was
£676,000. Surpluses and deficits are addressed on an adhoc basis with additional contributions recommended by
the pension scheme acfuaries during subsequent triennial valuations of the scheme. Nofe 20 details the
assumptions and movements during the year on the scheme.

-12-
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Reserves policy
For the financial year ended 31 August 2022 South Downs Education Trust retained a restricted reserve balance of

£13,545,539 (2021: £12,921,448) and an unrestricted reserve balance of £243,510 (2021: £173,268) carried
forward into 2022/23.

The Trust will be working {0 ensure that reserves of a minimum one months operating costs are created over the
nexi 3 years period.

Investment policy
In the year ended 31 August 2022 a balance of £10,367 (2021: £10,360) was held in a higher interest deposit
account with a 32 day notice period.

-13-
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The key high level risks that face the trustees are documented in our Risk Register and they are:

in-year without
budget cover

students looking to
remove students from
the school.
Monthly student
number data reports to
LGB

cycle are at 210 max/C&P
projections.
Planning places data
regularly reviewed by CEO
and CFO.

All roll number assumptions
shared with LGB and
Trustees
Regular re budgeting basis
on actual pupil numbers
Lagged funding allow some

preparation time,

Risk ID |Risk Description| Gross Risk Risk Trigger Contingency Actions for Restidual
Score prior | What is event that the Risk Risk Score
to mitigation would trigger post
Total L*-1 contingency plans mitigation
‘100001 Government 15 DiE announcements re:] Comprehensive budgeting 15
spending cuts teacher/ support staff | over a rollign 3 year period is
pay. Funding cut, completed by the D/ CFO
particutarly relating to | and overseen by Trustees
top up funding e.g. and FACC
pupil premium, sports
premium, recovery | Member of Confederation of
premium. Risk that cuts| Schools Trusts for regular
are announced after information about
budgets set.Could developments. Operations
impact on reserve Director and CEO members
levels of industry sector forums to
try to keep ahead of sector
Communication from developments,
ESFA, weekly Gov |- where possible contingency
email, SSAT, Unions, to be built into budgets to
WSCC etc. advising of allow for adaptation to
potential/planned or changing circumstances
actual change in - try to preserve reserves to
funding policy allow for unforeseen
circumstances
100002 Safeguarding 18 The DSL or ODSL Fully trained DSL and ODSL 12
failures would report to the in place.
Chair of Trustees/Chair| Link Governor completes
of LGB or HT that we regular reviews
were failing in our Use of CPOMSs by all staff
duties. CPOMS/Safeguarding
OFSTED may report reports to LGB
following an Inspection. | Induction training programme
West Sx Child On line fraining such as
Safeguarding Board Prevent
may report on alleged SCR used to record all
failings. training dates etc.
Annual staff DBS compliance
statement required to be
signed
Contractor DBS/
Safeguarding confirmation
letters received and filed
100003 | Student roll rise 15 Meetings with parents/ | Projections for 3 year budget 10

- 14 -
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100004

Demographic
changes
impacting Year 7/
R intake

15

Autumn meetings with
WSCC Admissions
department reporting
changes to expected
student numbers to HT.

WSCC Planning places data
shared by CEO regularly
PAN to be reviewed following
departure of bulge year
Use of temp/fixed term
staffing contracts if required.
Active marketing campaign
with Open Days, Taster
Mornings and Open Evenings
to maintain demand levels.

10

100007

Failure of IT
systems and/ or
cyber attack/
ransomware

20

Unable to log in to the
system within the
individual school or
temp loss of broadband
connection - this would
also impact phone
system.

Barracuda backup system in
place for WHS
Broadband provided by Virgin
and regular customer account
management in place
Registered for new "city
infrastructure” when available

- Strong ICT filtering systems.
Regular staff training/
information on risks of ICT

10

100008

Financial
pressure of new
schools joining
the Trust

20

Financial due diligence
repori outcome
reported to HT and
Trustees.

Use of external arganisation
Moore South - {o complete
financial diligence checks
Trustees to approve move

into MAT oncs in receipt of all
due diligence check
information.

- analysis of reserves to be
undertaken along with "going
concern” assessment

- clear analysis and
understanding of costs
associated to schools joining
the Trust

10

100011

Premises failure
means loss of
teaching space

12

A loss of teaching
space due to planned
or unplanned event.

Use of company who provide
temp classrooms (as per
science buitd).however cost
implication
Potential use of C&P Village
Hall/Worthing College/Glynn
Owen Centre for KS4 lessons
(immediate requirement)
Issue due to lack of capacity
in current number of
classrooms.
Insurance in place to assist

costs

10
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100011

Premises failure
means loss of
teaching space

12

A loss of teaching
space due to planned
or unplanned avent.

Use of company who provide
temp classrooms (as per
science build).however cost
implication

Potential use of C&P Village |

Hall/Worthing College/Glynn
Owen Centre for K84 lessons
{immediate requirement)
Issue due to lack of capacity
in current number of
classrooms,
Insurance in place fo assist
costs

100031

End-year deficit
exceeds
reserves.

Monthly Management

Accounts would provide

an early indication

Interim External Internal

Audit visits
Interim end of year
audit visit
October Audit visit
projections

Effective and robust budget | 7

projections
Robust budget management.

New monthly FMR template |

produced for month end
reperting links finance and
budgeting systems. Also
provides future analysis of
likely reserves position at end
of year and consolidated
accounts for MAT
Regular management
reporting to Trustees and
Chair of Trustees
Plan to rebuild reserves to a
level of £400k in 3 years (by
Aug 23)

100044

Strike action:
Teachers and/ or
support staff

Unions hack strike
action following
member ballots to
protest about pay/
conditions

- keep communications open
- collapse lessons

- keep school open for

vulnerable students (skeleton

staff)

- ensure online bank of work

available and populated
- Virtual learning wherever
possible

There are other risks additional to those listed in the above table but these risks have been mitigated to a green risk
and therefore have not been reported in these accounts. The risk register is reviewed termly.
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Risk Management
A comprehensive Business Continuity and Risk Management Policy has been put in place working in partnership
with our Trustees, which is reviewed by Audit Panel, Trusfees and Senior Leadership Team on a regular basis. The
major risks that South Downs Education Trust is exposed to are linked to the seven critical activities, products and
services we deliver:

1. Provision of education;

Inclusion Support;

Business Administration:
Safe-guarding;

Pastoral Care and Student Well-being;

Estate Management including catering and cleaning; and

N os N

Exams.

A risk register has been developed which identifies the actions and procedures fo mitigate these risks which is
reviewed regularly by the Senior Leadership Team and the trustees.

Financial Risk Management

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures, including the segregation of duties and a system of financial delegation.
In particular it includes:

« Comprehensive budgeiing and monitoring systems with monthly reports o Trustees
Clearly defined purchasing and tendering processes

Identification and management of risks

Reviews by the Audit Panel and IRQ

Annual external audit

Fundraising

During 2021/22 South Downs Education Trust continued to fundraise for local and national charities. The Trust
managed to raise over £4k for 7 different charities during the year.

The Student Charity Representative Group works alongside the lead teacher for Community and Charity evenis.
Students determine a programme of events for each academic year which inciude:
+ Non uniform days — 4 in 2021/22 where each student and staff member pays a minimum of £1 donation
¢ Annual national events such as Children in Need, Comic Relief, Macmillan Coffee event and
Remembrance
+ Christmas Hampers, cake sales and music concerts including Remembrance and Christmas

The Trust did not work alongside any commercial or professional fundraisers during 2021/22. All fundraising is
monitored by the Local Governing Body and Trustees. There were no fundraising complaints during 2021/22.

The Trust has a Parental Donation Fund — which parents/carers are asked to donate to if they are financial able to
do so0. In 2021/22 £170 was donated by parents and carers.

The Trusts Charging and Remission Policy makes it clear that when donations are requested from parents and
carers there is always financial support available. The Policy follows DFE policy requirements “Charging for School
Activities”.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

Energy consumption kWh
Aggregate of energy consumption in the year 970,118
Emissions of CO2 equivalent metric tonnes metric tonnes
Scope 1 - direct emissions
- (Gas combustion 114.97
- Fuel consumed for owned transport 0.392

115.36

Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased 63.17

Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the academy frust 141
Total gross emissions 179.94
Infensity ratio

Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.16

Quantification and reporting methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporiing Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken fo improve energy efficiency

We have increased video conferencing technology for some mestings to reduce travel emissions. All external
contractors are encouraged to use local providers to help reduce emissions and their carbon footprint. Qur facilities
manager also produces a monthly energy comparison report that goes to SLT and {rustees. We have over 100
solar panels installed on the science block roof on site at Worthing High School which produces solar power which
contributes 9% renewable energy for the school. We have some AMRs installed and a building management
system which allows for a 30% reduction in gas consumption at Worthing High School. The Worthing High School
building energy performance operational rating, which is based on carbon dioxide emissions has a typical rating for
a public building of 100, for Worthing High School it is 68. We have a Condition improvement fund grant for the
replacement of three boilers and a water heater in Worthing High School’s South Boiler House which will increase
energy efficiency across the school. All lighting in the sports halt, LRC and two classrooms at Worthing High School
were replaced to LED lighting in Summer 2022. At Clapham and Patching there is a condition improvement fund
grant for replacement of 9 original windows from 1844,
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Comparafive information

Aggregate of energy consumption for the 2021 year: 1,083,531 kWh
Direct emissions

Gas combustion 134.96 metric tonnes
Fuel consumed for owned transport 0.09 metric tonnes

Indirect emissions
Electricity purchased 63.06 metric tonnes

Other indirect emissions
Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the academy trust  0.24 metric tonnes

Total gross emissions 188.35 metric tonnes

Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.18 metric tonnes

Plans for future periods
South Downs Education Trust produces a detailed annual Schonl Development Plan which focuses on the key
ohjectives and activities for the forthcoming year.

In 2024/22 the trust was successful in securing two CIF grants from the ESFA for significant capital projects. One is
for the boiler house refurbishment at Worthing High School and one is to refurbish the windows at Clapham and
Patching. Work has bsen paused on the student services entrance capital improvement project dus to the
uncertain financial economic climate that is affecting schools in 2022/23.

The key focus for South Downs Education Trust Trustees over the next twelve month period is to develop our Multi
Academy Trust by introducing further schools and to continue to support Clapham and Patching Primary School.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
No funds are held as a custodian trustee on behali of others.

Auditor

In so far as the frustees are aware;

- thers is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the frustees have taken all steps that they ought fo have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and 1o establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

A resolution proposing that Moore (South) LLP be reappointed as auditor of the charitable company will be put fo

the members.

The trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of frustees, as the
company difectors, on 05 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr R Cohen
Chair
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Scope of responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that South Downs Education Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure o achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewesd and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO as Accounting Officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between South
Downs Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the
hoard of frustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in intemnal confrol.

Governance

The information on govemance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the 12 month
period of these accounts.

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

Mr R Cohen {Chair) 5 5
Ms R Fleming-Nulty (Former Chair) {(Resigned 20 October 2021) 0 0
Mr T Parkin 5 5
Mr A Sparsis 5 5
Mr 1 Hughes 5 5
Reverend H M Buque 3 5
Mr J Gilbert 2 5

1 1

Mrs Amanda Baker (Appointed 22 June 2022)

During 2021/22, one Trustee resigned and one new Trusfee joined, Mrs A Baker.

The board of Trustees met only 5 times in 2021/22 but maintained effective oversight of funds due to shared
information between Governing bodies, audit committee and staff pay and performance committee. The Chair of
Trustees sits on the Warthing High School Governing Body.

Governance Review

A comprehensive external review of govermnance completed in autumn 2019 through to spring 2020. This resulted in
a new Scheme of Delegation, Committee Structure and Local Governing Body Committee structure.

In 2021/22 an internal audit of SDET took place to look at Governance, 4 recommendations have been made but
the report gave substantial assurance that the Trust has sufficient controls in place. An independent review of
Governance at Clapham and Patching also took place in 2021/22.
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Audit Committee

The Finance, Audit and Compliance commiliee is a sub-commitiee of the main board of trustees. The audit
committee has an overarching role of oversight and scrutiny. It is responsible for reviewing the risks to internal
control at South Downs Education Trust. The commiitee delivers an agreed programme of work that addresses any
risks, to inform the governance statement that accompanies the school's annual accounts and so far as it is
possible, provide assurance {o the external auditors.

The audit committee has no executive powers or operational responsibilities.

The audit commitiee was supported by the internal audit function of Kreston Reeves for 2021/22. The Internal Audit
programme is agreed with the Chair of Trustees annually and the |A reports are presented to the audit committee
and trustees. Three internal audits took place In 2021/22 on the following: Payroll, Fixed Assets and Governance.

Staff Pay and Performance Committee

The committee is a subcommittee of the main board of trustees. The ierm of reference for the commiltee are
available on the school website. Responsibilities include recommending the staffing performance and pay awards
each autumn term to the trustees. Ensuring that the school is staffed sufficiently for the fulfiilment of the school's
development plan and the effective operation of the school. It also oversees the operation of the school's appraisal
policy - including the arangements and operation of the Trust's appraisal procedures for the CEQ and it
establishes the annual and longer-term salary budgets and other costs relating to personnel, e.g. training.

Attendance at the audit committee and staff pay and performance committee meetings in 2021/22 was as follows:

Audit Committee (and Finance and Resources) Staff Pay and Performance Committee
Meeting Outofa Meeting Out of a2
attended possible atiended possible

Mr R Cohen {Chair) 3 3 Mr | Hughes (Chair) 2 2
Mr A Sparsis 3 3 Rev'd H Buque 1 2
Mr J Gilbert 1 2
Mr T Parkin 1 2

Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee (forms part of Audit Committee)

The Committee is a subcommittee of the main Board of Trustees and forms part of the Audit Commitiee. The Term
of Reference for the Committee are available on the school website. The responsibilities of the Committee include
fo review, adopt and monitor a Finance Policy. To review, adopt and monitor all additional financial policies,
including a charging and remissions policy. To establish and maintain a five year financial plan, taking into account
priorities of the Academy Development Plan, roll projection and signals from central government and (if applicable)
the LA regarding future years' budgets, within the constraints of available information.

Review of value for money

As accounting officer the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.,
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The accounting officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for monsy
during each academic year, and reports to the board of frustees where value for money can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

+ yse of consortium buying crganisations such as Kent County Council (KCC)

* best value purchase policy delivered by the trust finance team — ordering the most cost effective materials
and equipment.

* The CEO and Operations Director are delegated with the authority to award coniracis with a iotal
contractual value of £75,000 or less over the life of the contract. Tenders and Contracts over this value
must be approved by the Trustees who also participate in the tendering process.

= In addition the Trust volunteered for an SRMA — ESFA audit in December 2020 which resulted in a full and
detalled review of resource management.

The key financial aim is for South Downs Education Trust to achieve value for money by ensuring our resources
are used effectively and efficiently and with probity. This enables us to continuously improve for the benefit of our
students.

The trust has kept staffing resources under constant review during the financial period. A staffing report is
presented monthly to trustees which enables them to discuss current and future vacancies and opporiunities to
maximise resourcing demands.

The purpose of the system of internal contro!

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy frust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihcod
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in South Downs Education Trust for the period 1
September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounits.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy
trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.

The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular it includes:

= comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees

* regular reviews by the board of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of
major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

* setting fargets to measure financial and other performance

= clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
* identification and management of risks.
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The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and appointed Krestan Reeves,
as internal auditor from September 2020. The Internal Auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and
performing a range of checks on the academy trust's financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried
out in the current period (2020/21} included:

= May 2022 — Payroll
+ Revisw of Employment contracts
« Sampled payroll data
+ Raview of payroll journals and payrolt information received from WSCC
+ Sample startersfleavers
¢+ July 2022 — Fixed Assets
« Reaview the Fixed Asset Register
« Sample of Fixed Asset Additions and disposals
» Review of Fixed asseis on the register and still held by the trust
= Review of insurance cover for Assets
s July 2022 — Governance
= Check Companies House against Get information about schools
« Ensure Academy website has up io date information available
» Ensure the Board of Trustees meets at least 3 times per year
= Ensure there is a Gifts and Hospitality policy and record of these gifts/hospitality is kept.

The internal auditor reporis fo the board of trustees, through the Audit committee on the operation of the systems of
control and in the discharge of the board of frustees’ financial responsibilities and prepared a summary repori to the
commitiee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee
consider actions and asses year on year progress,

Three interna!l audit visits are planned each financial year. During 2021/22 three Internal Audit visits were
compiefed.

During 2021/22 an audit tender took place and it was agreed that the Academy would reappoint Moore (South) LLFP
as the external auditor for 2022/23s accounts and Carpenter Box were appointed as the internal auditors of the
trust from 2022/23.

Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of infernal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

+ ihe work of the internal auditor
= fhe work of the external auditor

= the financial management and governance seff-assessment pracess or the school resource management
self-agsessment tool

« the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the audit committee and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 05 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

(.

Mr R CoHen Mr P Panayiotou
Chair Accounting Officer

T - _' B L
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As accounting officer of South Downs Education Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust board of trustees and the Educafion and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
considerafion | have had due regard fo the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the academy trust's board of frustees are able to idenlify any material imegutar or improper use
of funds by the academy frust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered io
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of frustees
and ESFA.

g%

1

Mr P Panayiotou
Accounting Officer

05 December 2022
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The frustees (who are also the direciors of South Downs Education Trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the trustees' reporf and the accounts in accordance with the Academigs Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and

expenditure, for that period.
In preparing these accounts, the frustees are required to:

= select suitable accounting policies and thien apply them consistently;

= abserve the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022; L4

* make judgements and accounting esfimates thal are reasonable and prudent;

= state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been folloWéd, -subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the accounts; and
= prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the charitable

company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy al any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Gompanies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detaction of fraud and other itregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are respansible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's websife. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 05 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Chair

w26



SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH DOWNS
EDUCATION TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of South Downs Education Trust for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise
the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts,
including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 to0 2022.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy frust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy frust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect fo going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual report
other than the accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Other information includes the trustees’ report
{(incorporating the directors’ report) the governance statement and the statement of regularity, propriety and
compliance. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is fo read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the accounts or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work underlaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees' report (which includes the directors’ report) for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the directors’ report, included within the trustees' report, have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the frustees’ report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

- certain disclosures of fruslees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the
academy frust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the accounts and for being
satisfled that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contro! as the trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decislons of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounls is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Irregularifies, Including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
accounis due fo fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those assessed risks;
and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both management and those charged with
governance of the Academy Trust.
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Our approach was as follows:

The engagement pariner selected staff for the audit, led by persons who it was deemed had sufficient
experience and who had the required competence and skills to be able to identify or recognise non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

We assessed the risk of irregularities as part of our audit planning, and ongoing review, including those due
to fraud, management override was identified as a significant fraud risk. This is due to the ability to bypass
controls through inappropriate expenditure and accounting policies adopted.

Completeness of income was identified as a significant risk to the audit, as grant income may not be
recognised in accordance with the SORP.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the charity and we
considered the most significant to be Academies Accounts Direction, the Charity SORP, UK financial
reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council, the Companies Act 2006 and UK
Taxation legislation. We considered how the Academy Trust complies with these requirements by
discussions with management and those charged with governance.

We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations. Consideration was also made of the
internal controls in place to mitigate the identified risks.

We assessed the control environment, documenting the systems, controls and processes adopted. The
audit approach incorporated a combination of controls where appropriate, analytical review and substantive
procedures involving tests of transactions and balances. Any irregularities noted were discussed with
management and additional corroborative evidence was obtained as required.

We obtained an understanding and assessed the impact of Covid-19 on the operations of the Academy
Trust and adapted our audit approach accordingly. We enquired and obtained evidence to support the
going concern assumption and reviewed support received through the Coronavirus support schemes,
dovetailed with work undertaken on management override,

To address the risk of fraud through management override we:

performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

tested journal entries to identify any unusual transacfions;

tested itemns of expenditure to ensure that they were valid and appropriate;

confirmed monthly management accounts were reviewed by the board;

assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias;

reviewed the disclosures within the accounts to ensure they meet the requirements of the accounting
standards and relevant legisiation.

In response to the risk of irregularities with regards to completeness of income we:

completed analytical work, to include comparison with prior periods;

agreed a sample of income from source documentation to the accounting records to ensure that income is
complete and recognised in the correct accounting period;

reviewed minutes of trustees meetings and confirmed income sources mentioned were included correctly
within the accounts.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above., The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to
enquiry of the directors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may
involve deliberate concealment or collusion.
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH DOWNS
EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust
and the academy trust's members as a body, for our audii wotk, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Matthew Bather (Senior Statutory Auditor) 7 DWLU 2022

for and on behalf of Moore (South) LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor City Gates
2 - 4 Southgale
Chichester
Woest Sussex
PO19 8DJ
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND
SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 24 October 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by South Downs Education Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to South Downs Education Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the South Downs Education Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than South Downs Education Trust and ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of South Downs Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of South Downs Education Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 3 December 2012 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reascnable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us fo obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
* consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance;
analytical procedures on the general activities of the academy trust;
a review of minutes of committees and board meetings which may be relevant to regularity;
consideration of discussions with key personnel including the accounting officer and governing body;
tests of control have been carried out on a control activity which are relevant to regularity.
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND
SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been
applied fo purposes intended by Paritament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

/%mt (S::uﬁl/) LiF

Reporting Accountant
Moaore (South) LLP
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2022 2021
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 29,625 - 216,583 246,208 52,520
Donations - transfer from locai
authority on conversion - - - - 74,038
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 - 6,840,468 - 6,840,468 6,683,563
Other trading activities 5 208,412 - - 208,412 109,762
Investments 6 248 - - 248 137
Total 238,285 6,840,468 216,683 7,295,336 6,920,020
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Grants 9 - 8,940 - 8,940 -
- Educational operations 10 168,043 7,278,765 299,256 7,748,064 7,156,629
Total 7 168,043 7,287,705 299,256 7,755,004 7,156,629
Met incomel{expenditure) 70,242 (447,237) (82,673) (459,668) (236,609)
Transfers between funds 18 - (22,608) 22,608 - -
Other recognised gains/(losses}
Actuarial gains/({losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes 20 - 1,154,000 - 1,154,000 (155,000)
Net movement in funds 70,242 684,155 {60,0865) 694,332 {391,609)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 173,268 (197,123) 13,118,572 13,004,717 13,486,326
Total funds carried forward 243,510 487,032 13,058,507 13,789,049 13,004,717

-32-



SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2021

fncome and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants

Donations - transfer from local authority on
conversion

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations
Other frading activities

Investmenis

Total
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

Total

Net incomel/{expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

-9

10

18

20

Unrestricted Restricied funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021
£ £ £ £
26,211 - 26,309 52,520
- 69,128 4,910 74,038
- 6,683,563 - B,683,563
109,762 - - 109,762
137 - - 137
136,110 6,752,691 31,219 6,920,020
93,489 6,753,615 309,525 7,156,629
93,489 6,753,615 309,525 7,156,629
42,621 (924) (278,306)  (236,609)
(8,223) (32,728) 40,951 -
- (155,000) = {155,000)
34,398 (188,652) (237,355)  {391,609)
138,870 (8,471) 13,355,927 13,486,326
173,268 (197.123) 13,118,572 13,094,717
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022
2022

Notes £ £
Fixed assels
Tangible assets 14 12,097,588
Current assets
Debtors 15 332,961
Cash at bank and in hand 1,248,587

1,581,548

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 16 (790,087)
Net current assets 791,461
Net assets excluding pension liahility 13,789,049
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 20 -
Total net assets 13,789,049
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds 18
- Fixed asset funds 13,058,507
- Restricted income funds 487,032
- Pensian reserve -
Total restricted funds 13,545,539
Unrestricted income funds 18 243,510
Total funds

13,789,049

2021
£ £

13,112,855

231,848
920,381

1,162,228

(494,467)
- 657,762
13,770,717
(676,000)
13,004,717

13,118,572
478,877
{676,000)
12,921,449
173,268

13,084,717

The accounts on pages 32 to 57 were approved by the trusiees and authorised for issue on 05 December 2022 and

Company registration number 08276210




SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 21
Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DiE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and cthers
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other loan

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2022

£ £

308,188

398,188
248
92,405
1,010
{159,889)

(66,226)
(3,756)

(3.756)

328,206

920,381

1,248,587

2021

137
26,309

(55.284)

(7.513)

237,335
83,038

320,373

(28,838)

(7,513)

284,022

636,359

920,381
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of freland {FRS 102} (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concemn

After making appropriate enqguiries, the Board of Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the academy
trust has adequate resources fo continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. At the end of the
year the academy trust has £730,542 (2021: £652,145) funds held in revenue reserves and £1,248,587 (2021:
£920,381) cash at bank. The trust has been suffering for the past few years from the effects of lagged funding
due to an increasing roll and have undergone several major capital projects which have required confributions
from the trusts reserves.

The trust were budgeting a breakeven position for 2022/23 as the effects of the fall in roll reverse and through
careful budgeting however, unfunded pay awards are likely fo affect this balanced budget. Any revenue deficit
arising will be met by unrestricted funds.

The trustees therefore feel that there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the academy trust to continue as a going concem and the use of the
going concern basis is appropriate. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one
year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
prabable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of incoms
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entilernent and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.4

Accaunting policies (Continued)

Donafions

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured,

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and fo the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘[ncome from
other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities” and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the accounts until they are
sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impracfical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised cnce there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atiributable to a single
activity are allocated directly fo that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attributable io a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy frust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educatiocnal operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies (Gontinued)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private secior, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a resiricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold [and, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land and buildings 2-7%

Assets under construction Not subject to depreciation until brought into use
Computer equipment 10 - 20%

Fixtures, fittings & equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounis are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in seftflement, and the amount of the setilement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets

Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial fiability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or ancther financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1

1.9

1.10

1.11

Accounting policies {Coniinued)

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the fests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, o the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are
held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and ceniributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligaticns. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes impesed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder
and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabiliies within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension lability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects resulis from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

3 Donations and capital granis

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 216,583 216,583 26,309
Other donations 29,625 - 29,625 26,211
29,625 216,583 246,208 52,520
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SOUTH BOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4 Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ E £
DiE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG) - 6,144,568 6,144,568 5,707,018

Other DfE/ESFA grants:
- Pupil premium - 191,385 191,385 197,945
- Teachers pay grant - - - 75,557
- Teachers pension grant - - - 213,508
- Others - 91,650 91,650 8,944

- 6,427,603 6,427,603 6,202,972

Other government grants

Local authority grants - 339,333 339,333 251,828
Other educational grants - 24,162 24,162 25,674
- 363,495 363,495 277,502

COVID-19 additional funding

DfE/ESFA

Catch-up premium - - - 88,100
Other DIE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - 41,030 41,030 71,129

Non-DfE/ESFA
Other COVID-19 funding - 8,340 8,340 43,860
- 49,370 49,370 203,089
Total funding - 6,840,468 6,840,468 6,683,563

5 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 70,896 - 70,896 26,299
Trip income 130,259 - 130,259 70,553
Other income 7.257 - 7.257 12,910
208,412 - 208,412 109,762
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SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

6 Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Other invesiment income 248 - 248 137
7 Expenditure

Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £

Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 4,893,130 299,256 543,685 5,736,071 5,441,825
- Allocated support costs 1,262,087 490,606 257,300 2,009,993 1,714,804
Grants - support costs = 8,940 - 8,940 -
6,155,217 798,802 800,985 7,755,004 7,156,629
Net incomel/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2022 2021
£ £

Fees payable to auditor for:

- Audit 9,785 8,500
- Other services 5,255 5,100
Operating lease rentals 41,280 21,973
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 298,559 307,705
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 697 1,820
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 15,000 6,000

8 Central services

No central services were provided by the academy trust to its academies during the current and prior year and

no central charges arose.

9 Analysis of grant expendifure

Unrestricted

Improvements to dioscesan property occupied
by the academy trust

funds
£

Restricted Total
funds 2022

£ £

8,940 8,940

Total
2021

Improvements to diocesan properly occupied by the academy trust have been funded from Condition
Improvement Funding. A corresponding transfer has been made from the restricied fixed asset fund to support

this expenditure.
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10

GCharitable activities

Direct costs
Educational operations

Support costs
Educational operations

Analysis of cosis

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs
Staif development

Depreciation

Technology cosls

Educational supplies and services
Examination fees

Other direct costs

Suppori costs

Suppori staff costs

Technology costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Energy costs

Rent, rates and other occupancy costs
Insurance

Security and transport

Catering

Finance costs

Legal costs

Other suppoit costs

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £
149,903 5,586,168 5,736,071 5,441,825
18,140 2,000,793 2,018,933 1,714,804
168,043 7,586,961 7,755,004 7,156,629
2022 2021

£ £

4,893,830 4,632,655

19,347 26,101

299,256 309,525

133,256 139,093

66,295 141,005

103,865 47,239

219,522 146,207

5,736,071 5,441,825

1,262,087 1,054,768

7,551 14,354

156,457 134,014

127,239 114,578

98,208 62,995

45,989 40,164

65,149 77,970

15,539 3,433

49,205 50,760

15,000 6,000

120,317 109,663

55,492 46,105

2,018,233 1.714,804
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Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
2022 2021
£ £
Wages and salaries 4,364,765 4,106,122
Social security costs 432,274 399,042
Pension costs 1,339,181 1,131,646
Staff costs - employees 6,136,220 5,636,810
Agency staff costs 18,997 43,184
6,155,217 5,679,994
Staff development and other stafi costs 20,047 33,530
Total staff expenditure 6,175,264 5,713,524
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:
2022 2021
Number Number
Teachers ) 68 63
Administration and support 80 64
Management 7 7
155 134

The increase in the average number of administration and support staff in year is due to additional temporary
staff such as exam invigilators employed under zero hour contracts. This number was reduced in 2021 due fo

the impact of the covid-19 pandemic.

Higher paid staif

The number of employees whose employee benefils (excluding employer pension costs and employer

national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2022

Number

£60,001 - £70,000 3
£70,001 - £80,000 2

£90,001 - £100,000 =
£100,001 - £110,000

—

2021
NMumber

— W N
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12

13

14

Staff (Continued)

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits {including employer pension contributions
and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the academy trust was £710,128 (2021: £610,442).

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

No trustee received remuneration or other benefits from employment with the academy trust.

During the period ended 31 August 2022, no travel and subsistence expenses were reimbursed or paid
directly to any frustee (2021: £nil).

Trustees' and officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost of this
insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

Tangible fixed assets

L.and and Assets Computer Fixtures, Motor Total
buildings under equipment fittings & vehicles
construction equipment
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2021 14,663,901 - 484,278 448,349 24,352 15,620,880
Additions - 95,422 28,144 60,323 - 183,889
Disposals - - (24,720) (1,612) - {26,332)
At 31 August 2022 14,663,901 95,422 487,702 507,060 24,352 15,778,437
Depreciation
At 1 September 2021 1,700,865 - 384,529 398,172 24352 2,507,925
On disposals - - (24,023) (1,612) - {25,635)
Charge for the year 230,978 - 39,419 28,162 - 298,559
At 31 August 2022 1,931,843 - 399,925 424,729 24,352 2,780,849
Net book vaiue
At 31 August 2022 12,732,058 95,422 87,777 82,331 - 12,997,588
At 31 August 2021 12,963,036 - 99,749 50,170 - 13,112,955
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15

16

17

Tangible fixed assefs {Continued)

Clapham and Patching CofE Land and Buildings

The freehold of Clapham and Patching CofE Primary School's land and buildings are owned by the Diocese of
Chichester (the Diocese Board of Finance). The Academy Trust holds its sites under a licence. The
Supplemental Agreement includes the right for the Diocesan Trustees to give not less than 2 years' written
notice to the Trust and Secretary of State for Education to terminate the agreement. No such written notice
has been received as at the date of the approval of the financial statements. In accordance with the terms of
the Supplemental Agreement with the Diocese of Chichester, the Trust pays no rent. A notional rent value has
not been included in the financial statements as it cannot be reliably measured at this stage.

The Diocese retain ownership and control of the school site at Clapham and Patching CofE Primary School
and so this does not meet the definition of a fixed asset. As a result, no transfer on conversion has been
recognised in respect of Clapham and Patching CofE Primary School's land and buildings in the financial
statements.

Debtors
2022 2021
£ £
Trade debtors 23,355 17,229
Other debtors 53,292 42 072
Prepayments and accrued income 256,314 172,647
332,961 231,848
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2022 2021
£ £
Other loans - 3,756
Trade creditors 12,640 8,297
Other creditors 219,676 198,689
Accruals and deferred income 557,771 283,725
790,087 494,467
Deferred income
2022 2021
£ £
Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year 320,403 174,946
Deferred income at 1 September 2021 174,946 226,718
Released from previous years {174,946) (226,718)
Resources deferred in the year 320,403 174,946
Deferred income at 31 August 2022 320,403 174,946
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18

Deferred income

(Continued)

The academy received the following income and funding in relation to 2022/23 and has been deferred inio the

next academic year:

SEN funding £153,334
Trip deposits £80,835
WSCC Growih funding £45,510
WSCC ENF funding £19,395
Rates £16,857

Other trivial deferrals £4,472

Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 Septernber losses and 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure transfers 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 478,877 6,144,568 {6,113,805) {22,608} 487,032
Pupil premium - 191,385 (191,385) - -
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19
funding - 41,030 (41,030) - -
Other Coronavirus funding - 8,340 {8,340} - -
Other IME/ESFA grants - 91,650 (91,650) - -
Other government grants - 363,495 (363,495) - -
Pension reserve (676,000} - {478,000) 1,154,000 -
(197,123) 6,840,468 (7,287,705} 1,131,392 487,032
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants 13,118,572 216,583 (299,256) 22,608 13,058,507
Total restricted funds 12,921,449 7,057,051 {7,586,961) 1,154,000 13,545,539
Unrestricted funds
General funds 173,268 238,285 (168,043) - 243,510
Total funds 13,094,717 7,295,336 {7,755,004) 1,154,000 13,789,049
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted Revenue Funds

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the schools that
has been provided to the Trust via the Education and Skills Funding Agency {ESFA) by the Department of
Education (DfE). Funds carried forward to help meet the Academy Trust's running costs in future years.

Pupil Premium; Other DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding; Other DfE/ESFA grants represent funding received via the
ESFA by ithe DfE. The relevant restricted expenditure has been allocated through this fund. There are no
balances carried forward at the year end.

Pension reserve
The pension reserve relates to the Academy Trust's share of the West Sussex County Council Local
Government Pension Scheme.

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund

The difference to the total included within tangible fixed assets (note 13) has arisen due to unspent capital CIF
grant income carried forward. Amounts transferred represent excess capital expenditure funded by GAG
reserves. .

Unrestricted reserve
Unrestricted reserves represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.
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Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium

Catch-up premium

Other DIE/ESFA COVID-19
funding

Other Coronavirus funding
Other DFE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversicn
DfE group capital grants

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

{Continuead)

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 income Expenditure transfers 2021
£ £ £ £ £
218,529 5,707,018 (5,413,942) (32,728) 478,877
- 197,945 (197,945) - -
- 88,100 (88,100) - -
- 71,129 (71,129) - -
- 43,860 (43,860) - -
- 87,072 (87,072) - -
- 277,502 (277,502) - -
- 75,657 (75,557) - -
- 213,508 (213,508) - -
(227,000) (9,000) (285,000) (155,000) (676,000)
(8,471) 6,752,691 (6,753,615) (187,728) (197,123)
- 4,910 - {4,910} -
13,355,927 26,309 (309,525) 45,861 13,118,572
13,355,927 31,219 (309,525) 40,951 13,118,672
13,347,456 6,783,910 (7,063,140) (146,777) 12,921,449
138,870 136,110 (93,489) (8,223) 173,268
13,486,326 6,920,020 (7,156,629) (155,000} 13,094,717
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19

Funds {Continued)
Total funds analysis by academy
2022 2021
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as foliows: £ £
Central Services - -
Worthing High Schoeol 713,608 582,108
Clapham and Patching CofE Primary School 16,934 70,037
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 730,542 652,145
Restricted fixed asset fund 13,058,507 13,118,572
Pension reserve - {676,000)
Total funds 13,789,049 13,094,717
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff cosis supplies depreciation 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Central Services - - - - - -
Worthing High School 4,656,293 765,023 487,614 662,352 6,571,282 6,238,973
Clapham and Patching
CofE Primary School 256,568 43,325 34,066 72,507 406,466 323,131
4,912,861 808,348 521,680 734,858 6,977,748 6,562,104

Expenditure not included in the above being depreciation; LGPS service costs; and LGPS finance costs

totalling £777,256 (2021: £594,525).

Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 12,997,588 12,997,688
Current assets 324,345 1,196,284 60,919 1,581,548
Current liabilities (80,835) (709,252) - (790,087}
Total net assets 243,510 487,032 13,058,507 13,789,049
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Analysis of net assets between funds {Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Tofal

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are
represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 13,112,955 13,112,955
Current assets 203,756 939,100 9,373 1,152,229
Current liabilities (30,488) (460,223) {3,756) {494.,467)
Pension scheme liability - {676,000) - {676,000)
Total net assets 173,268 {197,123} 13,118,572 13,094,717

Pension and similar obligations

The academy irust's employees belong o two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Sussex County Council. Both are mutt-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accardance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS related {0 the
period ended 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting fo £100,002 (2021: £91,953) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019,
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20 Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

* employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)

« total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and noticnal assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £126,100 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 million

* the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPIl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of eamings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024,
The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £645,136 (2021: £622,677).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multiemployer pensiocn scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its coniributions to the scheme as if it were a defined confribution scheme.
The academy trust has set out above the informatfon available on the scheme.

Local Governmeni Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contributions are as noted below.

The agreed contribution rates for future years are:
Employers: 18.2% for 2022/23
Employees: 5.5% - 12.5%
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Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme funding valuations are completed every three years with the latest
triennial valuation related to the period ended 31 March 2019. In the years succeeding this valuation, the
accounting valuation methedology is adopted. The aim of the funding valuation is to ensure that each
employer’s share of the Fund's assets alongside future expected investment returns and contributions will be
sufficient to meet future benefit payments from the Fund. The purpose of an accounting valuation, as
conducted in the current and prior year, is to facilitate a consistent comparison of pension positions between
employers. An accounting valuation has no effect on the cash contributions that will be certified for an
employer.

In conducting an accounting valuation, actuaries have used the projected unit credit method of valuation as
required by FRS 102 accounting standards. Results have been projected forward from the latest 2019 funding
valuation using approximate roll forward methods to the accounting date of 31 August 2022. Allowances are
made for changes in financial and demographic assumptions, benefit accrual, actual pension increases and
estimated cashflows over the period. Allowances are also made for bulk transfers, business combinations and
seftlements where applicable.

Actuaries cannot assess the accuracy of roll forward estimates without another full funding valuation being
undertaken. This is due to take place in respect of the pericd ending 31 March 2022 with resulis therefore
impacting the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2023.

Financtal and demographic assumptions are detailed below and are assessed specifically to the accounting
date of 31 August 2022. As at the accouniing date, the net discount rate (discount rate net of inflation) has
significantly increased compared to the prior year from 1.65% to 4.25%. The significant increase in discount
rate assumption coupled with an increase in CPl assumption, from 2.9% to 3.2%, has resulted in a large gain
on scheme assets as at 31 August 2022,

Under FRS 102, an entity shall recognise a plan surplus as a defined benefit plan asset only to the extent that
it is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the
plan. The trustees acknowledge their responsibilities requiring them to make judgements and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent. As such, the trustees deem it prudent not to recognise a defined benefit plan
asset at the year end on the basis that the extent of future contributions cannot be reliably quantified.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total confributions made 2022 2021

£ £
Employer's contributions 263,000 213,000
Employees' contributions 59,000 63,000
Total contributions 322,000 276,000
Principal actuarial assumptions 2022 2021

% %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7 3.4
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 3.2 2.9
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.25 1.65

-53-



SOUTH DOWNS EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

20

Pension and similar obligations

(Continued}

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today

- Males

- Females

Retiring in 20 years
- Males

- Females

Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

Discount rate - 0.5%

Mortality assumption + 1 year
CPl rate + 0.5%

Salary increase rate + 0.5%

Defined benefit pension scheme net asset/(liability)

Scheme assets
Scheme obligations

Effect of changes in the amount of surplus deemed
irrecoverable

Net asset/{liability)

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Bonds
Cash
Property

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £(108,000) (2021: £968,000).

2022 2021
Years Years
219 22.1

24.2 24.4

22.8 231

259 26.1

2022 2021

£ £

510,000 815,000
176,000 279,000
475,000 745,000
35,000 60,000
2022 2021

£ £
6,465,000 6,306,000
(4,393,000) (6,982,000)

(2,072,000)

- (676,000)

2022 2021

Fair value Fair value
£ £
3,167,850 3,279,120
2,068,800 2,270,160
193,950 252,240
1,034,400 504,480
6,465,000 6,306,000
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20 Pension and similar obligations

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operating charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2021
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial {gain)/loss
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2022

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2021
Interest income
Actuarial loss/{gain)
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2022

{Continued)

2022 2021
£ £

463,000 279,000
{106,000) (89,000)
121,000 95,000

478,000 285,000

2022
£

6,982,000
726,000
121,000

59,000
(3,440,000)
(55,000)

4,393,000

2022
£

6,306,000
106,000
(214,000)
263,000
59,000
(55,000}

6,465,000
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21 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activities)

Adjusted for:

Net surplus on conversion to academy

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Investment income receivable

Defined benefit pension costs less confributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Loss on digposal of fixed assels

(increase) in debtars

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

22  Analysis of changes in net funds

Cash
Loans falling due within one year

2022 2021
Notes £ £
{459,668) {(236,609)
- (74,038)
{216,583) {26,309)
6 {248) (137)
20 463,000 279,000
20 15,000 6,000
298,559 307,705
697 1,821
(1,945) (9.009)
299,376 {11,089)
398,188 237,335
1 September Cash flows 31 August
2021 2022
£ £ £
920,381 328,206 1,248,587
(3,756) 3,756 -
916,625 331,962 1,248,587

23  Long-term commitments

Operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

Amounts due within cne year
Amaunts due in twe and five years

2022 2021

£ £
19,167 4,643
35,696 706
54,863 5,349
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24  Capital commitments

25

26

2022 2021
£ £
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts 118,828 -

The capital commitments figure above comprises of amounts coniracted for but not provided in the financial
statements in respect of ongoing capital projects funded by Condition Improvement Funding.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees
have an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

Outqgoing related party transactions

During the year a company controlled by trustee, A Sparsis, provided catering services to the Trust totalling
£nil (2021: £2,046). No amounts were outstanding at year end (2021: nil ). Services provided fell below the
£2,500 at cost disclosure requirements.

No further related party transactions took place in the period of account other than certain trustees’ expenses
already disclosed in note 10. Trustees’ do not receive remuneration or benefits for their services.

Members® liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, ar within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member.
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